
Upcoming City Council Meetings Nov 5th  &  Nov 19 th 

AGENDA FOR THE MEETING 
DUNSMUIR CITY COUNCIL 

October 15th, 2020 

CLOSED SESSION: 5:30 pm 
REGULAR SESSION:  6:00 pm 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84424135442 
Or Call: +1 669 900 6833  

Enter Meeting ID: 844 2413 5442 

As a courtesy, please turn off cell phones and electronic devices while the meeting is in session.  Thank you. 

1. CALL TO ORDER  AND FLAG SALUTE
2. ROLL CALL
3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM
4. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION – Employee Evaluation: City Manager

( Government Code 549570)
5. CALL REGULAR MEETING BACK TO ORDER
6. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION
7. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

"Read Across Siskiyou" Proclamation
8. PUBLIC COMMENT

Regular City Council meetings are posted on the City’s website to keep City residents
informed of City Council actions and deliberations that affect the community. Meetings are
scheduled to be televised on the 1st and 3rd Thursday of each month.  Meetings that take place
on dates other than the 1st and 3rd Thursday will not be televised.
This time is set aside for citizens to address the City Council on matters listed on the Consent
Agenda as well as other items not included on the Regular Agenda.  If your comments
concern an item noted on the Regular Agenda, please address the Council when that item is
open for public comment. Each speaker is allocated three (3) minutes to speak. Speakers
may not cede their time to another speaker. Comments should be limited to matters within
the jurisdiction of the City. Speaker forms are available from the City Clerk, 5915 Dunsmuir
Ave, Dunsmuir, on the City’s website, or on the podium. The City Council can only take
action on matters that are on the Agenda, but may place matters brought to their attention at
this meeting on a future Agenda for consideration. If you have documents to present to
members of the City Council, please provide a minimum of seven (7) copies.

9. COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMENTS
10. COMMITTEE REPORTS
11. APROVAL OF MINUTES:  October 1st, 2020
12. CONSENT AGENDA:

a. Check Register: 9/26-10/9/2020
b. Updated and revised resolution regarding 2019/2020 CDBG Grant application

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84424135442


13. PUBLIC HEARING:
A. 2017 California Department of Housing and Community Development CDBG

Grant remittal and disencumbrance
Public Hearing Protocol: 

a. Mayor will describe the purpose of the Public Hearing.
b. City Staff will provide the Staff Report.
c. City Staff will respond to questions from the City Council.
d. Mayor will open the Public Hearing.
e. Citizens wanting to comment will come to the podium, provide the City Clerk with their

name and address and provide their comments.
f. Mayor will close the Public Hearing.

14. OLD BUSINESS

15. NEW BUSINESS
A. Accept PACE recommendation and award construction bid upon accepted 

concurrence from USDA RD for the water project
B. Discussion About Visioning and Priorities for the Upcoming Year

16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
Future Agenda Items are topics brought to the City Council for review and/or
  action.  All dates refer to first introductions and can be altered due to time and 
  priority levels. 

17. ADJOURNMENT

Copies of this agenda were posted at City Hall, Dunsmuir City Library, Dunsmuir Park 
and Recreation District Office and at the Post Office on or before 5:30 PM October 9th, 
2020. 

The City of Dunsmuir does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, age, gender, 
sexual orientation, disability or any other legally protected classes in employment or provision of services.  
Persons who need accommodations for a disability at a public meeting may call City Hall at (530) 235-4822 
for assistance.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to accommodate participation in the meeting. 

CERTIFICATION 

This is the official Dunsmuir City Council Agenda, created and posted in accordance with the 
Dunsmuir City Council Protocols. 

________________________________________ _________________ 

Deputy City Clerk Date 
Wendy Perkins 

10/08/2020 

2



 Siskiyou County 

PROCLAMATION  of the 13th ANNUAL “READ ACROSS SISKIYOU”  event 

Sponsored By First 5 Siskiyou Children and Families Commission 

WHEREAS, the ultimate goal of the First 5 Siskiyou Children and Families 
Commission is that all of Siskiyou’s children from prenatal to 5 years of age will be 
healthy, ready to learn, and supported in safe, nurturing families and 
communities; and 

WHEREAS, children in Siskiyou County from prenatal to 5 years of age have a 
successful start in life through daily reading with supportive and nurturing 
families, caregivers, educators and community leaders; and 

WHEREAS, early literacy is the foundation for academic, social emotional, and 
economic success.; and 

WHEREAS, First 5 Siskiyou in partnership with Family/Community Resource 
Centers dedicates one day each year to promote early literacy  through “Read 
Across Siskiyou” by providing the same titled book, read by guest readers to 
children in various preschool, kindergarten, child care settings and libraries 
throughout Siskiyou County on the same day and provide each child with a copy 
of that book; and 

Therefore the City of Dunsmuir hereby proclaims November 18, 2020 as the 13th 
anniversary of “Read Across Siskiyou” and be it that this body enthusiastically 
endorses daily reading, singing and playing with children as a critical foundation 
for healthy development and life long success.  

Signed ________________________________Date:________________________ 

Juliana Lucchesi, Dunsmuir Mayor 

3



DUNSMUIR CITY COUNCIL 
Minutes 

October 1st, 2020 

1. CALL TO ORDER  AND FLAG SALUTE
Meeting was called to order by Mayor Lucchesi at 6:04  pm.

2. ROLL CALL
Councilmembers present:  Arth, Bryan, Deutsch, Keisler
Councilmembers absent:  Lucchesi
Staff present:  CM Juhasz, Deputy City Perkins, CP Tinsman. FD Michaelsen, Srgt.
Whetstine.

3. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Tim Holt – Wants to commend city to keep children’s park open at the current location.
Question about enforcement of abandoned building ordinance. Since pandemic started
only one business has closed, Dough Hook. Can’t we enforce the vacant building
ordinance since our businesses seem to be thriving?
Would be helpful if there is a paragraph in the utility bill saying “this is what your utility
bill fees are going, to fix xyz” This would help our relationship with voters.
Public comment  closed @ 6:10 p.m.

5. COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMENTS
CM Juhasz – Butterfly Bridge replacement project is underway. We’ve started to get
talks going with UP that is willing to shepherd the trails project to Mossbrae through.
We’re working on a formal written agreement with UP. Drawings of the proposed trail
are being finished up.  Stumbling block is what rent is going to be charged to us for using
their property? We’re working for a $1/year lease. Need help from D.C. to negotiate put
pressure on UP to accept this amount.
FD Michaelsen provides update on water project. Water pipes and meters are being
replaced with brand new equipment.
CP Tinsman - We are working on a comprehensive update to city’s zoning code and
general plan housing element.
Sgt Whetstine – provides updated report for August. 500 hours of patrol time. 264 calls
for service, 29 traffic stops, 15 citations, 16 arrests, 8 felony booking. 18 misdemeanor
bookings. Two meth-amphetamine arrests for possession of a few grams. No burglaries,
10 thefts. No assaults. 24 disturbing the peace calls. New Sheriff appointed, Jerimiah
LaRue.
Arth – Wants to know about the “Approval of Agenda” item on the Agenda.
Comments on the refurbishing of Steam Engine 1727.
Deutsch – Comments on local transportation commission and how the interstate corridor
cities operate their bus services. Idea is that there will be a local bus route which will
operate all day long just in Dunsmuir. There will be a single transfer point in each town
which will take people up and down the I-5 corridor and drop them at the local route.

4



Local routes will have its own dedicated bus service. For now, STAGE bus service is free 
(due to pandemic). 
Bryan – Would like to remind everyone in the election season, facts matter. Stay 
educated. Takes a lot of time to check the budget of the city yourself but members of 
public are encouraged to take part in our meetings and ask questions regarding their 
decisions at the ballot. 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS – Brian Shirley DPAC - 166 confirmed cases of Covid. 2
active, 164 recovered. 0 deaths. 8822 tests in county, 8601 negatives. 55 awaiting results.
0 patients in acute hospital setting.

7. APROVAL OF MINUTES:  September 17th, 2020
Motion to Approve by Keisler, 2nd by Deutsch
Roll Call Vote: AYES: Arth, Deutsch, Keisler, Bryan

NOES: None 
ABSENT: Lucchesi 
ABSTAIN: None     4-0-1-0

8. CONSENT AGENDA:
A. Check Register: 9/12-9/25
B. Public safety funds, COPS grant, annual amendment
C. Public Safety Funds maintenance of effort annual certification

Motion to adopt consent agenda by Keisler, 2nd by Arth
Roll Call Vote: AYES: Arth, Deutsch, Keisler, Bryan 

NOES: None 
ABSENT: Lucchesi 
ABSTAIN: None      4-0-1-0 

9. PUBLIC HEARING:  Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
Planner Tinsman – Introduces the Siskiyou County LHMP, draft City of Dunsmuir annex and 
Safety Element amendment presented on August 6th to council. C Following Council review, 
Council directed staff to submit project to Cal OES and FEMA for review and bring project back 
for adoption once an “approved pending adoption” letter received. Both Cal OES and FEMA 
reviewed the project - on September 24th staff was informed that annex met DMA of 2000 
requirements. FEMA will be issuing an approval letter once adopted. As noted in staff report, Cal 
OES’s AB 2140 review occurs post adoption. Staff recently went through process with Cal OES 
and Cal OES has already informally reviewed draft annex and general plan amendment. City 
should have no difficulty quickly obtaining AB 2140 compliance. Once adopted by City and 
approved by FEMA and Cal OES, City will be eligible for federal disaster assistance, California 
disaster assistance, and hazard mitigation grants 

5



Public comment opened at 6:40 p.m. None. Closed @ 6:40 p.m. 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-12 by Deutsch, move to make finding that the proposed 
project would not have a detrimental effect on the environment, that we adopt  recommended 
CEQA exemptions and that we adopt Resolution 2020-12 approving the general plan amendment 
and adopting the Siskiyou County Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, including 
City of Dunsmuir annex, as the official hazard mitigation plan of the City of Dunsmuir. 2nd by 
Arth. 

Roll Call Vote: AYES: Arth, Deutsch, Keisler, Bryan 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Lucchesi 
ABSTAIN: None      4-0-1-0 

10. OLD BUSINESS - None

11. NEW BUSINESS
A. Discussion with Hunter Cable about providing fiber to Dunsmuir
CM Juhasz introduces the item. Hunter will be putting in a fiber node at the airport. We
don’t know what kind of appetite there will be for fiber. If we have enough people that
can participate, fast internet is one way we can create economic development.
Jeff Wilsey and Andy Hackett make remarks about their ability to provide fiber to City of
Dunsmuir. Nearest access point is at Mott Airport. Approx. 1350 homes they could get to
plus schools, police, fire. Looking for leadership of Council to help direct to make this
happen. May want to establish a couple cabinets one north, one south town. Seeking
comments from council How can we move the move forward?

Council questions: 
Bryan – Says our city is deeply interested in this fiber internet service.  
Arth – Questions how it can be cost effective. Would they like to franchise? 
Wilsey (Hunter Communications) –prefers competitive approach. They are based in 
Medford, OR. The ATT’s and Snowcrests are not able to deliver this speed at this time. 
Hunter will be able to sell their 100 meg minimums at or above what Snowcrest could 
offer. 
Juhasz – Wonders how they will know if they have the interested numbers to make it 
feasible? 
Wilsey – Door hangers and going door to door to inquire if there is interest. Imperative to 
know who the users are and what are their needs? It’s a gigabit network. Can bring a gig 
to your house or dial it down to 100 megs. 
Bryan – What % would need to sign up in 1st year to have it go ahead? 

6



Wilsey – They need to get a sense of small and enterprise business interest where that 
level of connectivity would ramp them to next level. ie. police, fire schools, how are they 
connected? Answers to those kinds of questions help influence the go ahead. Folks may 
choose not to buy a home (especially those tech professionals from Bay Area) if the 
appropriate internet connection is not available to their house. It’s 100% Hunter fiber, 
end to end. No leased fiber. 
Arth – Hopes to bring this item back on next agenda to keep conversation going. Who 
should be representing the city and its interest to keep us on the right side of the digital 
divide? 
B. Discussion with Chief Padilla about the state of fire safety in Dunsmuir and
needed resources.
Padilla – State has suffered some 8000 fires this season. Zogg fire near Redding has
burned 55k acres, 4 fatalities. Slater fire in Happy Camp, also still burning. Next few
months will be warmer and drier. We are in the normal fire danger range. Many of
Dunsmuir Fire Dept. members work other jobs full time but Mt Shasta, Cal Fire and
Weed fire departments help respond to ours. Have been working with CSO to identify
weed abatement issues and get folks into compliance.

D. Discussion of the sale of a City owned parcel on Scherrer Ave (APN 058-221-100)
CM Juhasz introduces the item. Gentlemen owns two neighboring parcels and wants to
buy the above APN. Original offer was $8250. Turns out now they want to offer $5000
and pay all the transfer costs. We’d still have a 10 ft easement along the river. Whether
we sell it or not, there are so many other fishing access places along this area.
Arth – asks whether there may be an appraisal saying it’s worth more around $15,000?
Juhasz – Doesn’t really know how much it is worth. Doesn’t see many people come in
saying they want a 10 ft wide parcel. The part that parallels the river enables the
fisherman to walk the bank along the river.
Public Comment open at 7:40 p.m. None. Closed at 7:41 p.m.
Bryan clarifies this is not just a 10 ft wide parcel but that it also includes a much wider
stretch of river front which “T’s” the 10 ft walkway toward the river.
Arth – There is not much you can do with this parcel on its own, but if you own both
neighboring parcels it is very attractive. Wants to reject the $5,000 offer. Let the
gentleman do a formal appraisal. He won’t be happy.

Motion to counter the $5000 offer and approve the sale of parcel number 058-221-100 for
the original offer price of $8250 (and the associated costs for the transfer of the parcel) by
Bryan, 2nd by Keisler.

Roll Call Vote: AYES: Deutsch, Keisler 
NOES: Arth, Bryan 
ABSENT: Lucchesi 

7



ABSTAIN: None     2-2-1-0  Motion did not carry.

Motion to reject $5000 offer by Bryan, 2nd by Keisler 
Roll Call Vote: AYES: Deutsch, Keisler, Arth, Bryan 

NOES: None 
ABSENT: Lucchesi 
ABSTAIN: None      4-0-1-0    Motion carries.

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS –
May need to revisit sale of parcel number 058-221-100 
Historic District Committee – reforming 

13. ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn by Keisler, 2nd by Deutsch
       Meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m. by Consensus. 

___________________________________  
Mayor Lucchesi 

___________________________________ _________________ 
Wendy Perkins, Deputy City Clerk  Date 

8



City of Dunsmuir

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status Amount

9/26 TO 10/9/20

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

U.S. BANK 1Page:
 1:46 pmTime:

10/07/2020Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

U.S. BANK Checks

91.11SDSA pump alarmAT&T1910Printed10/01/202054313

91.11River ave lift pump alarmAT&T1910Printed10/01/202054314

91.11I5 Lift station alarmAT&T1910Printed10/01/202054315

69.92SR lift AlarmAT&T1910Printed10/01/202054316
91.11WWTP alarmAT&T1910Printed10/01/202054317

66.01lookout point alarmAT&T1910Printed10/01/202054318

243.60wastewater weekly lndBASIC LABORATORY, INC.2635Printed10/01/202054319

147.80nuts, oil and spool.sCABITTO'S SMALL ENGINE 
REPAIR

9000Printed10/01/202054320

379.50Sep2020 CleaningREBECCA CATLETT 5325Printed10/01/202054321

2,079.1065gal 95gal can rent, recyclinCLEMENS WASTE REMOVAL6325Printed10/01/202054322
13,334.44Sep. 2020 extra GA, ContractCLEMENS WASTE REMOVAL6325Printed10/01/202054323

90.003rd Qtr Phone charges2020ANTHONY CONGI 6630Printed10/01/202054324

90.003rd Qtr phone 2020DENNIS DELLA BONA 12752Printed10/01/202054325

400.00Transite/Asbestos pipe traininDKF SOLUTIONS GROUP, LLC10680Printed10/01/202054326
2,666.79butterfly bridge Env. StudiesJACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP 

INC.
10681Printed10/01/202054327

100.83magic monkey, 1/4air nippleLAWSON PRODUCTS, INC10561Printed10/01/202054328
5,821.49Sep2020 buildingsPACIFIC POWER39015Printed10/01/202054329

166.76Postage printer rental Sep20PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL39851Printed10/01/202054330

1,000.00postage for pitney bowesPURCHASE POWER39853Printed10/01/202054331

50.00treasurer stipend Sep2020MARIO J. RUBINO 45110Printed10/01/202054332
1,558.33Sep. 2020 Building servicesSMITH BUILDING SERVICES, 

LLC
47676Printed10/01/202054333

203.64hose coupler, fluid pumpSTATEWIDE TRAFFIC SAFETY9413Printed10/01/202054334

227.07forehead thermometerUSA BLUE BOOK, INC53806Printed10/01/202054335

131.19ww, pw, cso phoneVERIZON WIRELESS50850Printed10/01/202054336

168.20fire department phoneVERIZON WIRELESS50850Printed10/01/202054337
1,650.97broken shaft repairA&A MACHINE & WELDING INC165Printed10/09/202054338

384.12Billing & Postage for Sep20ADVANCED INFOSYSTEMS514Printed10/09/202054339

516.00ww weekly testBASIC LABORATORY, INC.2635Printed10/09/202054340

82.18lvoc brk partsBAXTER AUTO PARTS, INC.2800Printed10/09/202054341
50.00Vaccination deposit returnBRILL, HAZE10682Printed10/09/202054342

480.00treatment plantCITY OF DUNSMUIR9820Printed10/09/202054343

6,168.86weight dump feesCLEMENS WASTE REMOVAL6325Printed10/09/202054344

40.08July 2020 to September 2020DIVISION OFTHE STATE 
ARCHITECT

10149Printed10/09/202054345

723.38Sept. 2020 monthly mainten.DUNSMUIR RECREATION 
DISTRICT

9393Printed10/09/202054346

100.00new tires on #302DUNSMUIR TIRE9885Printed10/09/202054347

308.18Sep. 2020 sup. matDUNSMUIR TRUE VALUE9850Printed10/09/202054348

223.50Sep.28 maintenance final billELECSYS INTERNATIONAL 
CORP

11255Printed10/09/202054349

235.18nitrile gloves medEMERGENCY MEDICAL 
PRODUCTS,INC

12122Printed10/09/202054350

125.42xl black glovesFASTENAL COMPANY9303Printed10/09/202054351

166.25hedge creek toilet Sep2020FISCHER'S SISKIYOU47610Printed10/09/202054352
700.72Tires for truck#302GOODYEAR COMMERCIAL TIRE17041Printed10/09/202054353

4,673.00grade III operator Sep2020GRIMM, GREG10657Printed10/09/202054354

465.60Ball Valve E#812L.N. CURTIS AND SONS, INC7260Printed10/09/202054355

309.67siskiyouAve Main repair partsMEYER & SONS HEATING31625Printed10/09/202054356
50.00L8797 Public hearingnuisanceMT SHASTA AREA 

NEWSPAPERS
9870Printed10/09/202054357

233.13L8798 Bids for water ProjectMT SHASTA AREA 
NEWSPAPERS

9870Printed10/09/202054358

1,200.00monthly it services Sept2020MT. SHASTA IT SERVICES, INC10650Printed10/09/202054359
900.00online code hosting20/21MUNICIPAL CODE 

CORPORATION
9176Printed10/09/202054360

152.69overload relay, shasta retreatNORTH VALLEY DISTRIBUTING9999992088Printed10/09/202054361
1,500.00audit Year ended 6/30/2020CHARLES W PILLON 10491Printed10/09/202054362

9



City of Dunsmuir

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status Amount

9/26 TO 10/9/20

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

U.S. BANK 2Page:
 1:46 pmTime:

10/07/2020Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

U.S. BANK Checks

23,501.632nd Qtr Premium workers compS.C.O.R.E.47100Printed10/09/202054363

50.22car wash and waxSHASTA AUTO SUPPLY47520Printed10/09/202054364

165.52014-060-003 wwtpSHASTA CO. TREASURER -TAX58030Printed10/09/202054365

63.00058-151-010Duns Fire hall taxSISKIYOU CO. TAX COLLECTOR44605Printed10/09/202054366
125.6459-010-190Bottling plant taxSISKIYOU CO. TAX COLLECTOR44605Printed10/09/202054367

914.20copers, printers Sep20US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE53810Printed10/09/202054368

1,500.00postage for UBUS POSTMASTER9318Printed10/09/202054369

316.78FD radio repairVALLEY INDUSTRIAL 
COMM.,INC.

9999999388Printed10/09/202054370

77,435.03Checks Total (excluding void checks):58Total Checks:

77,435.03Bank Total (excluding void checks):58Total Payments:

Grand Total (excluding void checks):Total Payments: 58 77,435.03

10



CITY OF Dunsmuir 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Approve an updated and revised resolution regarding applying for 2019/2020 CDBG Grant 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   

City Council approved resolution 2020-18 which was needed to apply to a 2019/2020 CDBG Grant. The 
application was submitted, and the City received comments back asking to use the attached revised and 
updated resolution. 

OPTIONS: Approve revised and updated resolution. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None  Yes  Budgeted Item?   Yes    No 

Budget Adjustment Needed?   Yes   No  If yes, amount of appropriation increase: 

Affected fund(s):  General Fund    Water OM Fund    Sewer OM Fund    Other: Fund 82 

Comments: SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  Motion to adopt resolution 2020-18 A Resolution approving an application for 
funding and the execution of a grant agreement and any amendments thereto from the 2019-2020 funding year of the 
state cdbg program. 

  Attachments: Resolution 2020-18

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Updated Resolution regarding 2019-2020 CDBG Grant MEETING DATE: 10/15/2020 

SUBMITTED BY:  Blake Michaelsen, Finance Director 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    Information only      Discussion    Action Item 

11



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-18 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR FUNDING AND THE 
EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO 

FROM THE 2019-2020 FUNDING YEAR OF THE STATE CDBG PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
Department has announced the availability Community Development Block Grant 
(hereinafter, “CDBG”), funding in the 2019-2020 Notice of Funding Availability 
(hereinafter, “NOFA”) prioritizing benefits to low-moderate income households; and  

WHEREAS, under the provision of said CDBG NOFA, applications may be submitted by 
a singular eligible entity in partnership with a subrecipient to manage the program 
delivery; and  

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Dunsmuir City Council (the “City”) to apply for 2019-
2020 CDBG funds for an Economic Development Program, that would create and retain 
low-moderate income jobs; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing notice was duly processed in considering authorizing the 
submittal of this CDBG 19-20 application, and the proposed Economic Development 
activity which meets the federal Citizen Participation requirements.  

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Dunsmuir as 
follows:  

SECTION 1: 

The City has reviewed and hereby approves the submission to the State of California of 
one or more application(s) not to exceed $500,000, for CDBG Economic Development 
Microenterprise Assistance - Technical Assistance and Microenterprise Assistance - 
Financial Assistance activities, pursuant to the January 21, 2019-2020 CDBG NOFA:  

List activities and amounts  

Economic Development not to exceed $500,000 
• Microenterprise Assistance- Technical Assistance
• Microenterprise Assistance- Financial Assistance

SECTION 2: 

The City will not commit Program Income (PI) for the CDBG activities described in 
Section 1.  

SECTION 3: 

12



The City acknowledges compliance with all state and federal public participation 
requirements in the development of its application(s). 

SECTION 4: 
The City hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager, to execute and deliver all 
applications and act on the City’s behalf in all matters pertaining to all such applications. 

SECTION 5: 

If an application is approved, the City Manager, is authorized to enter into, execute and 
deliver the grant agreement (i.e., Standard Agreement) and any and all subsequent 
amendments thereto with the State of California for the purposes of the grant.  

SECTION 6: 

If an application is approved, the City Manager, is authorized to sign and submit Funds 
Requests and all required reporting forms and other documentation as may be required 
by the State of California from time to time in connection with the grant.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Dunsmuir held on October 15th, 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

____________________________________ 
Juliana Lucchesi, Mayor, City of Dunsmuir 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
City of Dunsmuir 

I, Wendy Perkins, Deputy City Clerk of City of Dunsmuir, State of California, hereby certify 
the above and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by said 
City Council of the City of Dunsmuir on this 15th Day of October. 

__________________________________________ 
Wendy Perkins, Deputy City Clerk of City of Dunsmuir 
State of California 

By: _______________________ 
Wendy Perkins 

13



CITY OF Dunsmuir 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Remit and disencumber 2017 CDBG Grant Award 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   

See additional page for more detail. City was awarded a grant in 2017. No grants were administered. City 
applied for a 2020 grant which has many positive benefits according the attached summary page. 

OPTIONS: Approve, or not, the disencumbrance of 2017 grant by resolution 2020-21. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None  Yes  Budgeted Item?   Yes    No 

Budget Adjustment Needed?   Yes   No  If yes, amount of appropriation increase: 

Affected fund(s):  General Fund    Water OM Fund    Sewer OM Fund    Other:  

Comments: SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  Motion to adopt resolution 2020-21 A Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Dunsmuir to Remit and Disencumber Community Development Block Grant Award Number 17-
CDBG-12029 

  Attachments: Summary sheet 

Resolution 2020-21 

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Remit and disencumber 2017 CDBG Grant MEETING DATE: 10/15/2020 

SUBMITTED BY:  Blake Michaelsen, Finance Director 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    Information only      Discussion    Action Item 

14



Explanation of Decision to Remit and Disencumber Dunsmuir’s 2017 CDBG Business 
Assistance Program 

I. INTRODUCTION:

A. In 2017, The City of Dunsmuir was awarded $500,000.00 from the Community Development
Block Grant to support an Economic Development activity for direct financial assistance to for-
profit businesses.

B. For numerous reasons including staff turnover, existing Program Income from previous CDBG
programs, and the lack of a contractor to manage the CDBG program, the City has not been able
to draw down funds in a timely manner. Therefore, upon guidance from the California
Department of Housing and Community Development, the City has decided to remit the 2017
award and disencumber the funds in order to apply for a newer, streamlined program.

II. REASONS FOR REMITTAL

A. The 2017 award has an expenditure deadline of July 31, 2021. The City would not be able to
feasibly expend funds by this deadline, and in order to preserve the program, it would have to
seek extension waivers and significantly reduce the budget.

B. The 2017 award only allows for the provision of loans to for-profit businesses. Due to the
prevailing economic conditions caused by the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic, businesses in
Dunsmuir do not have the capacity to take on additional debt.

C. The City does not wish to risk the liabilities, delinquencies, or penalties that may occur if this
program is maintained, which can jeopardize the City’s ability to apply for future funds.

D. The City will not incur any liabilities, delinquencies, or penalties by deciding to remit funds.

III. REASONS FOR NEW PROGRAM

A. The State of California has implemented a comprehensive redesign of the CDBG program that
went into effect with the 2019-2020 CDBG program. This redesign significantly improves and
streamlines the program, making a newer program more beneficial to Dunsmuir businesses.

B. Due to the prevalence of small businesses with less than 5 full-time employees, the City of
Dunsmuir would be better served by a Microenterprise Assistance program than a traditional
Business Assistance Program, which offers more flexibility.

C. The 2019-2020 CDBG program currently benefits from federal waivers that were enacted in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. These waivers simplify the eligibility requirements to
participate in the CDBG program and allows the provision of forgivable loans and technical
assistance. Because businesses in Dunsmuir do not have an appetite to incur debt, they will be
more likely to participate and benefit from the program.

D. The City of Dunsmuir has partnered with the Siskiyou County Economic Development Council
as a subrecipient to manage and administer a new program. This will ensure that the reasons for
remitting the 2017 program do not occur again, and that City staff will not be over encumbered.

15



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-21

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DUNSMUIR TO REMIT 
AND DISENCUMBER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT AWARD 

NUMBER 17-CDBG-12029 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Housing and Community Development Department 
(hereinafter, the “Department”) has a Standard Agreement with the City of Dunsmuir (hereinafter, 
the “City”) titled 17-CDBG-12029  (hereinafter, “Program”), that provides $500,000.00 in 
Community Development Block Grant (hereinafter, “CDBG”) funding for an Economic 
Development - Business Assistance Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Program has remained inactive since its inception and has not drawn down any 
grant funds, with a fund-expenditure deadline of July 31, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, a new and updated CDBG program through the 2019-2020 Notice of Funding 
Availability, dated January 21, 2020, that offers forgivable loans and technical assistance to 
Microenterprises would better serve the City’s small business community and benefit from 
improved CDBG state guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the City applied for 2019-2020 CDBG funds for an Economic Development - 
Microenterprise Assistance Program in the amount of $500,000.00, with Siskiyou County 
Economic Development Council (hereinafter, “SCEDC”) as a subrecipient. 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Dunsmuir as 
follows:  

SECTION 1: 

The City has reviewed and hereby approves the remittal and disencumbrance of funds to the 
State of California of one or more Program(s) not to exceed $500,000.00, for CDBG Economic 
Development – Business Assistance activities, pursuant to Standard Agreement 17-CDBG-
12029:  

List activities and amounts  

Economic Development not to exceed: $500,000.00 
 18A ED- Direct Financial Assistance to For-Profits: $404,449.00 
 18AD Activity Delivery – ED:   $60,667.00 
 21A General Program Administration:    $34,884.00 

SECTION 2: 

The City did not commit Program Income (PI) or Cash Match for the CDBG activities 
described in Section 1.  

SECTION 3: 

The City hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager - Todd Juhasz, to execute and deliver 
all documentation and requirements to close out the Program with the Department and act on the 
City’s behalf in all matters pertaining to all such activities, including the completion of the 
Closeout Certification Letter, Disencumbrance of Funds Form (Financial Activity Closeout 
Summary), and Final Closeout Report. 

16



SECTION 4: 

Upon approval by the Department of the City’s closeout of the Program, the City Manager - 
Todd Juhasz, is authorized to enter into, execute and deliver the Final Closeout Report, Closeout 
Certification Letter, and Disencumbrance of Funds Form to the Department.  

SECTION 5: 

The City acknowledges compliance with all state and federal public participation requirements in 
the remittal of the program(s). The City posted a public notice on October 1st, 2020 for a public 
hearing on October 15th, 2020 to provide the public with a notification of the accomplishments 
and activities of the Program and its impending remittal to the State of California. 

SECTION 6:  

Upon satisfaction of the requirements in Section 4 and Section 5, per Exhibit B of Agreement 
17-CDBG-12029, The Program will hereby be closed.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Dunsmuir 
held on October 15, 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: 

____________________________________ 
Juliana Lucchesi, Mayor, City of Dunsmuir 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
City of Dunsmuir 

I, Wendy Perkins, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Dunsmuir, State of California, hereby certify 
the above and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by said City 
Council of the City of Dunsmuir on this 15th day of October, 2020. 

__________________________________________ 
Wendy Perkins, Deputy City Clerk of City of Dunsmuir 
State of California 

By: _______________________ 
Wendy Perkins 

17



CITY OF Dunsmuir 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Award construction contract for the Water Main Replacement Project upon accepted concurrence from USDA RD

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   City is working on a Water Main Replacement Project. The funding source will be a 
Loan and a grant from the USDA RD. Bids were opened September 29th. See attached letter from PACE with their 
recommendation. USDA RD is in the process of reviewing the bidding documents. Upon concurrent acceptance of 
the documents between City and USDA RD, City can award contract

OPTIONS: Approve, or not, the recommendation from PACE in awarding the construction contract for the water 
main replacement project to the lowest bidder. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None  Yes  Budgeted Item?   Yes    No 

Budget Adjustment Needed?   Yes   No  If yes, amount of appropriation increase: 

Affected fund(s):  General Fund    Water OM Fund    Sewer OM Fund    Other:  

Comments: SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  Motion to accept the recommendation from PACE Engineering and upon 
concurrent acceptance with USDA RD, award both Schedule A and Schedule B of the 2020 Water Main Replacement 
Project to SnL Group, Inc. 

  Attachments: Letter and bid summary from PACE 

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Accept recommendation from PACE and award water main 
replacement project to lowest qualified bidder upon accepted 
concurrence from USDA RD 

MEETING DATE: 10/15/2020 

SUBMITTED BY:  Blake Michaelsen, Finance Director 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    Information only      Discussion    Action Item 

18



19



Item No. Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum

A1 1 LS $20,000.00 1 LS $33,486.13 1 LS $28,439.37 1 LS $6,240.00 1 LS $7,000.00 1 LS $57,288.83 1 LS $20,000.00

A2 1 LS $750,000.00 1 LS $634,622.96 1 LS $639,560.00 1 LS $614,050.00 1 LS $820,000.00 1 LS $650,242.09 1 LS $950,000.00

A3 1 LS $860,000.00 1 LS $842,261.96 1 LS $987,634.57 1 LS $907,775.00 1 LS $1,100,000.00 1 LS $695,510.00 1 LS $1,500,000.00

A4 1 LS $325,000.00 1 LS $269,111.87 1 LS $285,414.86 1 LS $335,100.00 1 LS $380,000.00 1 LS $607,320.00 1 LS $350,000.00

A5 1 LS $595,000.00 1 LS $565,847.90 1 LS $636,589.55 1 LS $696,500.00 1 LS $780,000.00 1 LS $629,691.95 1 LS $1,000,000.00

A6 1 LS $360,000.00 1 LS $295,709.52 1 LS $325,533.77 1 LS $333,850.00 1 LS $412,000.00 1 LS $583,364.00 1 LS $605,000.00

$2,910,000.00 $2,641,040.34 $2,903,172.12 $2,893,515.00 $3,499,000.00 $3,223,416.87 $4,425,000.00

Additive Alternative Item

A7 1 LS $250,000.00 1 LS $241,020.96 1 LS $135,808.99 1 LS $174,450.00 1 LS $130,000.00 1 LS $560,743.00 1 LS $62,000.00

$3,160,000.00 $2,882,061.30 $3,038,981.11 $3,067,965.00 $3,629,000.00 $3,784,159.87 $4,487,000.00

Math error - changed Addition Error
.29 to .30

Lump Sum A7 - Construction of all work on Sheets A17 through 
A25, complete.  See Measurement and Payment Section 
012100.

Winning Bid $2,882,061.30

Lump Sum A4 - Construction of all work on Sheet A11, 
complete.  See Measurement and Payment Section 
012100.

Lump Sum A5 - Construction of all work on Sheets A12 
and A13, complete.  See Measurement and Payment 
Section 012100.

Lump Sum A6 - Construction of all work on Sheets A14 
and A15, complete.  See Measurement and Payment 
Section 012100.

Cox & Cox
Item Description

Trench sheeting, shoring, and bracing, complete.

Water Main Replacement Project SWS - Site Works SolutionEngineer's Estimate SnL Group

BID SUMMARY - DUNSMUIR WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
Schedule A

Mountain Cascade

Total 
Base Bid:

SUBTOTAL BASE BIDS

Total 
Base Bid:

Total 
Base Bid:

Total 
Base Bid:

Total 
Base Bid:

Total 
Base Bid:

Total 
Base Bid:

Timberworks

TOTAL BASE BID AND ADDITIVE ALTERNATIVE AMOUNT                                 
(including all Bid Item Nos. A1 through A7) 

RTA 

Lump Sum A2 - Construction of all work on Sheets A4, 
A5, and A6, complete.  See Measurement and Payment 
Section 012100.

Lump Sum A3 - Construction of all work on Sheets A7 
through A10 and M1 through M4, complete.  See 
Measurement and Payment Section 012100.

20



Item No. Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum Qty Unit Lump Sum

B1 1 LS $35,000.00 1 LS $29,804.14 1 LS $6,240.00 1 LS $28,439.37 1 LS $176,433.83 1 LS $8,000.00 1 LS $20,000.00

B2 1 LS $460,000.00 1 LS $528,449.65 1 LS $478,700.00 1 LS $459,568.75 1 LS $564,384.55 1 LS $550,000.00 1 LS $700,000.00

B3 1 LS $775,000.00 1 LS $807,900.43 1 LS $867,000.00 1 LS $888,855.40 1 LS $849,944.29 1 LS $980,000.00 1 LS $1,120,000.00

B4 1 LS $1,100,000.00 1 LS $1,131,505.99 1 LS $1,287,260.00 1 LS $1,258,905.02 1 LS $1,165,520.00 1 LS $1,300,000.00 1 LS $1,750,000.00

B5 1 LS $360,000.00 1 LS $337,118.55 1 LS $377,275.00 1 LS $337,645.50 1 LS $466,388.36 1 LS $400,000.00 1 LS $550,000.00

$2,730,000.00 $2,834,778.76 $3,016,475.00 $2,973,414.04 $3,222,671.03 $3,238,000.00 $4,140,000.00
Additive Alternative Item

B6 1 LS $775,000.00 1 LS $833,242.47 1 LS $805,882.00 1 LS $887,327.48 1 LS $964,971.04 1 LS $1,000,000.00 1 LS $850,000.00

$3,505,000.00 $3,668,021.23 $3,822,357.00 $3,860,741.52 $4,187,642.07 $4,238,000.00 $4,990,000.00
Total 

Base Bid:
Total 

Base Bid:
Total 

Base Bid:
Total 

Base Bid:

Winning Bid $3,668,021.23

Total 
Base Bid:

SUBTOTAL BASE BIDS

Lump Sum B6 - Construction of all work on Sheets B20 through 
B24, complete.  See Measurement and Payment Section 
012100.

TOTAL BASE BID AND ADDITIVE ALTERNATIVE AMOUNT                                 
(including all Bid Item Nos. B1 through B6) 

Total 
Base Bid:

Total 
Base Bid:

Lump Sum B5 - Construction of all work on Sheets B18 
and B19, complete.  See Measurement and Payment 
Section 012100.

BID SUMMARY - DUNSMUIR WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
Schedule B

Water Main Replacement Project Engineer's Estimate SnL Group Timberworks SWS - Site Works Solution Cox & Cox RTA Mountain Cascade
Item Description

Trench sheeting, shoring, and bracing, complete.

Lump Sum B2 - Construction of all work on Sheets B4 
and  B5, complete.  See Measurement and Payment 
Section 012100.

Lump Sum B3 - Construction of all work on Sheets B6 
through B9, complete.  See Measurement and Payment 
Section 012100.
Lump Sum B4 - Construction of all work on Sheets B10 
through B17, complete.  See Measurement and 
Payment Section 012100.

21


	Schedule A Bid Summary.pdf
	Schedule A

	Schedule B Bid Summary.pdf
	Schedule B




